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Introduction

The purpose of this popular documentation reporttos
provide information regarding the history of Brasal from
its inception through its evolution into the pres@naselton
National Register Historic District.

-
d}ra;ell’orl

Founded in 1876, Braselton grew into a center whiiag and
commerce for Jackson and the surrounding countemgl
the late 19th and early20th centuries. The town Wa }?“‘“h

incorporated in 1916, and continues to serve asnaortant Q}

community along the Interstate 85 corridor in Jacks
County.

Braselton was designated as a National Registeigibric
Places (NRHP) District in 2001. The boundaries bé f
historic district encompass the intact historic oreses
associated with the development of Braselton. Tisgrict
encompasses an approximate 60 acre area of Brasgltbis
centered on the intersection of State Routes 53 Hid Figure 1:

extending north to south along State route 53 astl t® west Braselton Locator Map from 1944

along State Route 124. (image from Lena Braselton’s Treasured Memories)

The Braselton NRHP District is currently comprisefl 48
contributing and 10 non-contributing resources. The
contributing resources include the town’s histmeenmercial,
agricultural, industrial, community landmark, anesidential
resources constructed from the late19th to mid-26tfiuries.

The Braselton Historic District is an excellent exde of a
late19th / early20th century Georgia town, fountgd single
family and supported by the strength of agricukuf
production. The historic district is important ihet areas of
architecture, landscape architecture, agricultuirejustry, Bt Mwroris
commerce, and community planning and developmenhet
local and state levels of significance.

The Georgia Department of Transportation is pregato
implement the realignment of the intersection cdt&tRoute
124 and State Route 53 from its historic configorabf two
offset “T” intersections, to form a four-legged ensection. This
will accommodate existing and future traffic demsnd create a
safer intersection for vehicles and pedestriand, @omote the
revitalization of downtown Braselton.

Figure 2:
Location of Braselton Historic District
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Based on the finding of “Adverse Effect” to the Bedion Historic District in the
“Assessment of Effects” completed in June 2006gtaitbd review of the anticipated impacts to the

Braselton Historic District by the intersection ligament project and an updated National Register
District nomination was conducted.

Cld Gas Station

John Braselton Braselton Bros.

Store

Scott Building

Auto Garage

Residence B Richardson

Residence C

STREET
0+00. 00
Braseiton Tire
Company

Cotton Gin

Barnett House

Storage Bldg
Braselon Rolling
Mill

1057 Telephone
Exchange

Figure 3: Resource Location Map from Georgia DOT “Assessment of Effects” Report

As a result of the route selection and road deasggociated with the intersection realignment, three
previously-contributing resources in the historistct will be demolished and one will be
relocated. The Braselton Tire Company, the CotteadSStorage Building, and the residence at
9791 State Route 124 are to be demolished. Th& T@fephone Exchange Building will be
relocated. In addition, the previously-contributingtwork of intact roads will be compromised by
the planned improvements. In total, the historitegnity and significance of four contributing
historic resources will be compromised by the geatient project.
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The updated analysis of the historic district rée@dhat several previously-contributing historic
buildings and sites no longer exist. The revisestonic district will consist of 40 contributing
historic buildings and 3 historic sites, for a tatb43 contributing resources in the district.

The first part of this report will provide an ovéew of the history of Braselton through a historic
context statement: This statement will describes¢hpatterns or trends in history by which a
specific occurrence, property, or site is underdtand its meaning and significance within history
are made cledr. The second part of the report will provide a detidescription of the Braselton
Historic District and the individual historic buitdys and sites that comprise the district. Thedthir
section will outline the historic significance ofd&elton, as represented in the National Register
Historic District.

Figure 4: Braselton Family Historical Marker

1 “How to Apply the National Register Criteria for Evaluation”; National Register Bulletin, U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service; 7.
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Historic Context
The Braselton Historic District encompasses the

historic commercial, agricultural, industrial,
community landmark, and residential resources 01
Braselton, Georgia within an approximate 60 acre
area, constructed from the late 19th to mid-20th
centuries. The district is located around the
intersection of SR 53 and SR 124. This area wa:
historically the commercial center of town,
located adjacent to the Braselton Brother’'s Store
and other commercial buildings.

Jackson County

Braselton is located in northeast Georgia, in
southwestern Jackson County. Created in 1796,
from portions of Franklin County, that originally

was the home of the Cherokee and Creek Indians,
Jackson County is the state’s twenty-second

Figure 5:
Jackson County Highlighted in Georgia (right);
Braselton Highlighted in Jackson County (left)

county.
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Figure 6: Map of Jackson County with Braselton and Hoschton Located in the Southwest Area
(lower left) of the County (image from Carl Vinson Institute of Government)
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In 1784, following the end of the Revolutionary \Weeterans
and other pioneers began settling in parts of Arai@dounty,

one of Georgia’s original eleven counties. As tlopydation

increased, citizens in the southwestern portiothefcounty
made an application to the state assembly for tineation of
a new county. On February 11, 1796, Georgia Goverared
Irwin signed the act creating the new county ok3aao.

The county was named Jackson after James Jackbonyas
a Revolutionary War general and Georgia statesdarkson
served six years with the Georgia state forcespanticipated
in the unsuccessful defense of Savannah in 17é&B dttle of
Cowpens in 1781, and in the recoveries of August81) and
Savannah (1782). After the war, he served in thera
Legislature and was elected to the first Federahgtess,
where he became one of the first Jeffersoniangposition to Figure 7: James Jackson
Alexander Hamilton and the Federalists. He latevesin the (image from Library of Congress)
U.S. Senate before returning to Georgia to overtinenYazoo - - -
Act that had sold Georgia’'s western lands to unmdaus

speculators. Later he served as Georgia’s Govéroor 1798

to 1801.

Early Towns

Founded in 1784, the first settlement in JacksoarBo
was Groaning Rock. The town changed its namg t0ococc/
Harmony Grove in 1825 and again to Commerce|in /
1904.

Following the creation of Clarke County from pono
of Jackson County in 1803, the Native Americ
community of Thomocoggan was renamed Jeffers
after Thomas Jefferson, and it became the new go
seat in 1806.

Other communities developed along the pattern
railroad lines in Jackson County, including:

Maysville in 1879, Arcade, Nicholson, Pendergrass, Jackson County, Georgia °
Talmo, Hoschton and Braselton. .o

Figure 8: 1796 Map of Jackson County
(Image from Tina Harris’ Portraits of a Southern Place)
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Braselton

Braselton was founded on December 8, 1876, a feavsye
after the marriage of William Harrison Braselton, t&

Susan Frances Hosch on December 11, 1867. TheltBrese
began their married life in Hoschton, Georgia oe Hosch
family plantation, where their first two sons, Hgnand
Green, were born.

On December 8, 1876, William Harrison and Susacimased
a ca. 800 acre property from G. W. Smith, near Hosch

home. They lived in a log cabin and began farmihg t
present site of Braselton. Here, a third sonnJohver, and

two daughters, Belle and Lena, were born.

Figure 9:
Marker at John Braselton House
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Figure 10: 1879 Survey of W. H. Braselton Sr. Property
(image from Lena Braselton’s Yesterday and Today)
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Braselton Stores

The Braselton Stores began when John
Oliver Braselton, the youngest son of
William and Susan, decided at the age of
eight that he would become a storekeeper.

In 1887, John’s father, William Harrison

Braselton, built a small 6 x 6 foot structure to
be his son’s store. From this small building in
the front yard of their house, John sold some
foodstuffs, including sweet crackers and
sardines, snuff, tobacco, and rock candy to
local farm hands. John sold a grand total of

$97.41 worth of goods and merchandise in
his first year of business.

After the first store was destroyed by a
runaway horse and buggy in 1888, a second
larger store measuring 14’ x 16’ was
constructed. This second store was large
enough to have a windofw.

That same year, John invited his older brother,
Green Braselton, to join the store. By 1891,
the oldest brother, William Henry, Jr., had
also joined the business. They became locally
known as the “three Bs.”

The house, currently located in the overgrown
lot on the northeast corner of SR 53 and SR
124, behind the Post Office, was originally

built as John Braselton’s second one-room
store, before being enlarged into a residence
during the historic period.

Figure 11: First Braselton Store — 1887
(image from Robbie Bettis’ Passing)

Figure 12: Second Braselton Store — 1888
(image from Passing)

2 | eta G. Braselton. Treasured Memories of the Braselton “3B’s”; Atlanta, Georgia: The Conger Printing Co., Inc., 1974; 60
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With their continued success, the Braseltons
replaced the second store with a larger third store
in 1891. It measured 22’ x 50'. As business
continued to increase, the brothers added 22
additional feet at the rear of the third store.

The Braselton Brothers built their stores closéh&
junction of SR 53 and SR 124 and the Gainesville,
Jefferson and Social Circle Railroad. The roads had
been in place for some time, but the rail line had
been built in 1882, spurring growth in the area.
Local farmers had access to shipping and receiving
large cargoes of agricultural goods. Before the
completion of the railroad through Braselton,
farmers used the freight station located in Hosthto
a town just south of Braselton

In 1902, behind the store, a sidetrack of theaadr
was installed along what is today, Wall Street. The
brothers erected a large 24’ x 120’ warehouse along
the spur track to store merchandise that they
purchased by the railroad car-load.

Fortk

Bire Gainesville —»
hood 124

Slate Road 83
- Rd

i '&d]l
Bras
Bros.
Slore

Slate
Road
124

Thurmack
Siding

o
‘Lh.. A
LA LR R

Figure 15:
Location of Railroad Adjacent to Braselton Brothers Store
(image from Passing)

Figure 13: Third Braselton Store — 1891
(image from Passing)

FURNITURE
SBTOVES.

Figure 14: Third Braselton Store with 22
Additional Feet at Rear — 1894
(image from Passing)
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Business continued to grow and the brothers erg¢htetburth store. Construction began on the

new brick store building on March 1, 1904, and waspleted on September 1st of that same
year.

Figure 16: Fourth Braselton Store -- 1904, with John, Green, and Henry Braselton Standing in the Doorway
(image from Mary Braselton Dale’s W.H. Braselton)

An article in the February 18, 1907 Atlanta SatyrHaening News entitled

“The Wonderful Progress of 3 Young Men” referredtt® Braselton brothers as “the most
successful merchantile firm in Northeast Georgigheir rapid growth reads more like a fairy tale
than actual facts and is a revelation to the bssineorld. Beginning 18 years ago in a little store
room 6 x 6 feet, and a few dollars, they now hdeehandsomest and most completely arranged
brick structure in this part of the Stafe(driginal quotation)

3 Leta G. Braselton. Treasured Memories of the Braselton “3B’s”; Atlanta, Georgia: The Conger Printing Co., Inc., 1974; 60
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The same article described the new store as hdeiwregy modern convenience and is the
most substantial up-to-date and prettiest storehausortheast Georgfa.

The article further described the building as fato

“This handsome new brick store is 60 X 95 feethviitl feet
walls and a basement 30 x 60 feet. The main flsafivided
into three departments—one for dry goods, notigrisshoes;
one for millinery and clothing; one for grocerieadathe
basement for heavy groceries. It has a solid gjass front of
60 feet with iron columns made by the Winder Foynaind
Machine Works, which firm had to compete with ay&aplant
in Evansville, Ind. to secure this contract forrishing the
columns. The entire building, including basemestjighted
by acetylene gas, requiring 730 candles. Thisashitightest
light known and makes this large store, with it$fedent
departments, a thing of beauty when lighted upigititnThe
building also has two handsome and well-arrangéditest
one of them being the private office. The dry goods
department is one of the prettiest store rooms @orGia,
being 36 x 60 feet. The Millinery and Clothing depsent,
20 by 60 feet, is a model of beauty and artistisigle The
grocery department, 30 x 36 feet, is equal in afgre to
most stores and is fitted with heavy groceries. $1B. Baker,
who superintended the building of this magnificetttre, can
afford to feel proud of the construction and worksiap, as it
cannot be surpass&d.

Figure 17: Braselton Brothers Logo/Signage -- ca. 1916 (image from Treasured Memories)

4 |bid, 61.
5 Ibid.
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By the time this new brick store was constructég, Ibusiness had expanded from selling
candy to selling dry goods, notions, shoes, miliimeslothing, and groceries. Already the
largest building in Braselton, the store was exgan 28,000 square feet in 1910, with the
addition of a three-story building to provide adutial space for the store and offices.

[ (ORISR

Figure 18: Fourth Braselton Store -- 1927, with Three-Story Addition at Rear
(image from Portraits of a Southern Place)

By 1921, the Braselton Brother’s Store housed theesas well as the local post office, the
offices and freight depot of the Gainesville MidlaRRailroad, the local express office,
Braselton Bank Company, Braselton Chamber of Comoepera wholesale general
merchandise company known as the Braselton Cononi€xmpany, and space for over 500
bales of cotton in the warehouse section of thédimg. By 1922, the Braselton Mercantile
Company was doing $250,000 per year in businesgl@dompany motto was “Dealers in
Everything.”® With the growing popularity of the automobiline Braselton Brother’'s
slogan changed to “It will pay you to drive milesdur big store and save money.” By 1944,
additional businesses included an undertaker, batim, filling station, garage, planing mill,
and blacksmith.

6 Ibid, 76
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Agriculture
Agriculture has played a dominant economic role in
Georgia’s history for more than 250 years, begignin

the Revolutionary War. Following the invention of
the cotton gin by Eli Whitney in 1793 in Savanna
cotton soon dominated agricultural production.
1860, there were 68,000 Georgia farms, produci
700,000 bales of cotton. Cotton continued
dominate production after the Civil War, with more
than 725,000 bales produced in 1870.

Figure 19: Green Braselton and Helpers
(image from W.H. Braselton)

During the late 19th and early 20th centuries,
Braselton was one of the richest and most fertile-
farming sections in Georgia. Crops grown in thg

3Bs, had been a successful farmer during Fﬂf‘t
lifetime, and the brothers continued that succesgs
They continued to produce crops on their farm o
1,800 acres and produced on average from 700 g
800 bushels of wheat, 150 to 200 bales of cottod, a |
thousands of bushels of corn per yearThey
produced and distributed hundreds of tons of their
own private label brand of fertilizer known as the
BBB brand.

Figure 20: Weighing Cotton
(image from New Georgia Encyclopedia)

Figure 21: Agricultural Fields behind Green Braselton House

(imaae from Treasured Memories)

7 Robbie L. Bettis. Passing: Stories through the history of Hoschton and Braselton, Georgia. Auburn, Georgia: NHB Publishing, LLC, 2006; 82.
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Industry

The presence of the railroad spurred industrial
development to take advantage of the agricultural
production in the area. In 1900, the Braseltof{s?”
Brothers had constructed the large rolling milthie ~ [* ~&

south of the store on the west side of SR 53. The
rolling mill, known as the Enterprise Flour and}
Grist Mill, was one of the earliest fully-operating
rolling mills in northeast Georgia. It survives &yd

as a rare representative example of an early20
century steam-powered rolling mill in Georgia.
According to the 1907 article in the Atlanta
Saturday Evening News, the rolling mill had the
capacity to produce 50 to 75 barrels of flour and
300 bushels of meal per day. The brothers sold thei

products under the labels of the “Three B’s” and Figure 22: Historic Photo of Rolling Mill
“Fast Flyer.”® (image from Treasured Memories)

Following the construction in 1902 of the railroad
spur along Wall Street, the Braselton Brothers,
during the early 1900s, constructed a Cotton Gin
along the siding. The gin contained a complete
Murray suction ginning system and had the capacity
to gin some 2,000 bales of cotton per sedsofhe :
ability to ship cotton directly from Braselton made
it possible to keep more money in the community, |
rather than to pay dealers in Gainesville, Jefferso
or Athens to process the cotton. This led to an|§

expansion of the family businesses and an overalll§

increase in wealth for the Braselton family and

residents. Figure 23: Historic Photo of Cotton Gin

(imaae from W.H. Braselton)

Figure 24: Cotton Bales Stored in Warehouse (image from W.H. Braselton)

8 |bid, 82
9 Braselton, 61
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The Braselton Brothers played the central role in
bringing the new technology of the telephone to
Braselton in the early20th century. In 1912, the
brothers partnered with Judge R. B. Russell of
Winder, Georgia to purchase an existing 1907
telephone system from Hoschton. The Hoschton
Telephone Company headquarters with its “plug or
drop” system switchboard was later transferred to a
small two-room house in Braselton in 1927. The
telephone service grew from just five subscribars i
the early 1900s to approximately 230 by 19%7.

Braselton Incorporated

Braselton was incorporated on August 21, 1916,
with W.H. Braselton as mayor. Upon incorporating,
the town limits were defined as follows:

Figure 25: Telephone Service Bill
(image from Passing)

“The inhabitants of the territory,
embraced within the limits of one half of
one mile in every direction (except the
southern limits herein after described)
from the center of the crossroads of what
is known as the Hog Mountain and
Hurricane Shoals public road, and the
Gainesville and Monroe public road,
said crossroads being near the store of

B

Braselton Brothers, in the county of Figure 26:
Jackson, and the southern limits on the “Becky” Braselton on Phone
southeast shall run soutt?® (image from Treasured Memories)

In 1919, shortly after incorporation, the Braselton
Brothers paid $40,000 for the construction of ehhig
school. The school was destroyed the following [ i
year during a storm; however, Braselton continued 3z,
to grow during the 1920s with the construction of J&
more housing and commercial buildings.

Figure 27: Historic Photo of Braselton High School
(image from Passing)

10 |bid, 75
1 Angela Gary and Jana Adams. Our Time and Place: A History of Jackson County, Georgia. Jefferson, Georgia: Main Street Newspapers, Inc., 2000; 2-4.
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Twentieth Century ___
The next year, 1920, was one of the worst years for g
the Braselton Brothers. Not only did the cotton [t
market crash in Georgia and the south, but a tarnad
swept through Braselton destroying the brand new [SESEe
school, the rear fourth of the brick store, thd ol
frame store, as well as other buildings in town. In
addition to the $110,000 loss from the physical
destruction caused by the tornado, the Braselton
Brothers lost $150,000 from customers unable to
pay their bills at the store.

While the financial losses from the cotton crast an

- Figure 28: Third Store — Tornado Damage
tornado were devastating, the Braselton Brothers (image from W.H. Braselton)

would recover, not only due to their continued
tenacity but also due to help from many people,
including their bankers and their customers. When
the time came to pay their loans to the banks, the
bankers told them not to worry and sent $500 to
help with repairs to the store. In addition, marfy o
their customers sent money, usually in nickels and
dimes. All told, they received some $8,000 in gifts
to help rebuild their damaged store. But in true 3B
fashion, the brothers did not spend any of this
money on the store, but instead donated it toward
the rebuilding of the school that had also been
destroyed by the tornado.

The depression in the 1930s posed little threat for Figure 29: Fourth Store — Tornado Damage
the local economy because the agricultural products (image from Treasured Memories).
were comprised of staples rather than luxuries. The

Braselton Brothers’ businesses thrived during this

period because their customers continued to come [~

from surrounding counties. As in most agricultural F=is<
areas, the local businesses extended credit
throughout the year and were paid when the crops
were sold. Braselton did better than most
communities in this endeavor because the Braselton |
Brothers charged much less than other merchants |
for this carrying fee. When most Georgia merchants |
were charging $8.00 to carry a sack of flour worth | -
$5.00, the Braseltons were charging their customers |
$5.50. The end result was that more people came to =
Braselton to transact their business rather than

gOIng to Other nearby towns Of Slmllar and even F|gure 30: Braselton H|gh School -- Tornado Damage
larger size (image from Treasured Memories).
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In 1939, Braselton was a thriving town in northe&siorgia. In addition to the store, the
Braseltons were operating the warehouse for cottmion seed, and fertilizer; the rolling mill
and gin; the shops; the filling station; the manpded; the depot; the post office; the private
bank; and the high schodf,

el T g Z'F I aewliile
e n!‘:ﬂ,; '; _l".‘l.- !g: .

wxy : -.:.'

Figure 31: Cotton/Fertilizer Warehouse Adjacent to Railroad Spur — Building No Longer Standing
(image from Portraits of a Southern Place)

While cotton production was declining during théeld930s and 1940s, Braselton residents
transitioned from agricultural to manufacturing 3o extile mills, manufacturing plants, and

poultry dressing plants moved into the area. Pgpudtoduction began in the county around

1927, and has increased tremendously over thefpagtyears making Northeast Georgia -

one of the nation’s leading poultry-producing rewo

Following the end of World War II, the importancé Braselton shifted from a regional

agricultural business center to that of a moreomai shopping center. Braselton was an
established mid-point between Gainesville and Windgeorgia, resulting in commercial

traffic moving through the town. Braselton becameamvenient shipping and mercantile
center for produce and goods during the mid-20tiues.

12 Braselton, 92
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Following the establishment of the large regiortaping malls, the Braselton commercial
core slowly started to decline. Despite this gradiexline, the core of Braselton remained
intact, with many of the town’s historic buildinggtant and in use, as seen in this 1960 aerial
photograph.

Figure 32: Aerial Photo of Braselton -- ca. 1960 (image from W.H. Braselton)
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As late as 1990, the Braselton Brother's Stord Btused the grocery, hardware, furniture,
appliance, and dry goods stores. Today, the Bas&tore houses several retail stores including
the Braselton Tile Company and the Braselton Amg8hop.

Figure 33: Photo of Braselton Brother's Store Today — with Braselton Antique Mall at Right, Ceramic Tile Outlet in Center, and
Braselton Tile Factory at Left
(Image from Just Outside Photo)

Despite the changes to the Braselton commercial
core, the town has grown both physically and
economically in more recent years. Having
expanded its boundaries, major attractions ang
companies have located in Braselton, turning the
once rural farming community and commercial
center into a thriving residential and manufactyrin |
area. These major attractions and companies includ
Chateau Elan, a 3,500 acre resort and winery; thg
Panoz Motor Sports Group and Panoz Auto
Development Company that builds the handmad
Panoz Esperante sports car; the International Moto
Sports Association; the Mayfield Dairy Visitors
Center; and Haverty's Distribution Center. Figure 34: Chateau Elan

(image from New Georgia Encyclopedia)
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Historic District
The Braselton National Register Historic Districs i
currently comprised of 47contributing and 10 non-

contributing resources. Based on changes that have

occurred to resources in the historic district siric was
established in 2001 and anticipated changes taligtact
from the forthcoming intersection realignment pcojehe
revised historic district will consist of 40 cotiuiting
historic buildings and 3 historic sites, for a totd 43
contributing resources in the district.

The historic district is an excellent example oktel19th
and early20th century Georgia town founded by @lsin
family and supported on the strength of agricultura
production. The historic district is significanttime areas of
architecture, landscape architecture, agricultimdustry,
commerce, community planning and development at the
local and state levels of significance.

The period of significance for the historic distrextends
from ca. 1887, the date of the earliest known histo
architectural resource in Braselton, to 1959, the ef the
historic period. This period of significance beaptures the
evolution of the town based on changing communitgt a
architectural development patterns over time.

The district is significant in architecture for iexcellent
collection of residential, agricultural, industrial
commercial, and transportation-related buildings
constructed from the late19th to the early 20thuess in
their landscaped settings. The district is alsmigant in
landscape architecture for its ten-foot residentads,
informally landscaped yards with foundation plagsrand
mature trees, stone retaining walls, and the Bi@sel
Family Cemetery.

The contributing resources in the district include town’s
historic commercial, agricultural, industrial, comnity
landmark, and residential resources constructenh ftioe
late19th to mid-20th centuries. Architectural ssytef the
historic buildings in the district include ColoniRevival,
Neoclassical Revival, Tudor Revival / English Veular
Revival, Craftsman, and Ranch.

Figure 35: William Henry Braselton
(image from Passing)

Figure 36: Green Braselton
(image from Passing)

Figure 37: John O. Braselton, Sr.
(image from Passing)
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Materials used to construct historic buildings wa# wood, brick, stone, and concrete for foundation
wood weatherboard, clapboard, drop board, and Esnfr wall siding; and asphalt shingles,
corrugated metal, and flat/built-up roofing.

Historic use of buildings comprising the districiciude single dwellings, businesses, professional
offices, specialty stores, post office, cemetegyjcaltural fields and storage buildings, manufacig
facilities, roads and transportation-related bogd. Many of the existing historic buildings are
currently used for these same functions, with theiteonal use of a former residential building now
used for a municipal function as the Braselton Eigfl.

The boundaries, relative to the town'’s period gh#icance, of the updated Braselton Historic Déstr
encompass the intact, historic, and contiguousuress associated with the historic development of
commercial, agricultural, industrial, and residehtiore of Braselton. Together the historic buitgin
and green spaces have retained their basic laymutlaaracter and represent the town’s development
from ca. 1887 through 1959.

Figure 38: Braselton Topographic Map with Braselton Historic District Boundaries
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Figure 39: Braselton National Register Historic District Map
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Commercial Resources

The district is significant in commerce not onlyr fiis
excellent collection of attached and free-standing
commercial resources representing the economic bmom
cotton during the late 19th and early20th centubes also
by the automobile-related resources representimgise of
Georgia SR 53 as a popular north-south transpontati
corridor. In addition to serving as a central lomatfor the
sale of agricultural products, Braselton also sgres a
commercial center for retail goods and services tfer &=
region. The extant historic commercial resource$y
constructed between 1902 and 1940, are locatedthear
core of the town. The primary group of commercia
buildings is located at the southeast corner o63Rnd SR
124 and is oriented facing north towards SR 124\aest
towards SR 53.

Braselton Brother’s Store (#38 on map) Figure 40: Facade of Braselton Antique Mall
The Braselton Brother's Store, constructed in 190ih (photographer facing south).
additions in 1910, 1940s, and 1950s, is a 29,8u@arsgoot

commercial structure on 2.38 acres of land. Itosprised

of a row of one-story attached brick buildings rimgneast

to west with an L-shaped section of the building

comprised of three stories. The floor structureeiaforced
concrete and the wall structure is brick masonry g
concrete block. The store has a flat roof of tadt gravel
with stepped parapet walls at the roof with tem#a
coping. Fenestration consists of bands of larggleipane
wood display windows with single-pane wood transomg
The doorways are recessed entrances with largdesingi
wood doors consisting of a central single-panelagg The
store retains historic signage, including the “Bitm
Bros. Inc.” sign above the window transoms.

The interior of the store is an irregular floor pldnterior
flooring is historic wood pine and non-historic yirtile.
Walls are painted masonry, and ceilings are hstenod
pine and non-historic Celotex fiberboard. The sitdlat
and consists of asphalt pavement and gravel. Aretac
sidewalk and granite curb are located along théhnand
west elevations, between the roadways and parkiel
Street is located behind the store to the south east.
There are no extant outbuildings associated wita th
building. The current condition of the store is dodhe
building appears to have been well maintained and i
currently being used as retail stores.

Figure 41: West Side of Braselton Antique Mall
(photographer facing east).
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The Braselton Brother’s Store is architecturallgnsicant
as an excellent representative example of the pheilti
resource type of historic commercial buildings ared in
the Georgia Resources Survey guide. This type sibhe
resource typically includes two or more one-stdatgched
units built together with identical fagades andrstonts,
and usually three-bays wide. This commercial bnddype ¢
was generally built in Georgia from the 1890s inbhe | e i L t [
1930s. The character-defining features of the BiGISe | ER ==

Brothers Store include a row of one-story brickrssowith | 1t i 2

S -

flat roofs and parapets, terra-cotta coping, histsigns, [SSSS==

bands of windows with transoms, large display wimgo

recessed main entrances, and three-bay front facade Figure 42: 1910 Three-Story Addition to
Braselton Brothers Store

(photographer facing northeast)

Figure 43: Historic Photo of Braselton Brother's Store with three-story Addition at Right
(image from W.H. Braselton)
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Other Commercial Resources

A second group of historic commercial resourcdedated
at the southwest corner of SR 53 and SR 124. Thede
buildings, constructed in the early20th centurye ar
generally associated with the increased use of th
automobile during the historic period, and inclubde Gas
Station, Scott Building, Auto Garage, Braselton eTir
Company, and 1957 Telephone Exchange building.

Gas Station (#53 on map)

The Gas Station, constructed ca. 1925, is a ong;sto
square-shaped commercial building with a threedsanyral
block. Representative of an early20th century coroiak
gas station, the building is of wood frame condtoucand
the exterior walls are clad with wood shingles.t Meod
corner boards are located at the exterior cornérthe
building and the foundation is rectangular-shapeidkb
masonry piers. The low-pitched hipped roof is cleith
standing seam metal roofing and the wide overhangin
eave has exposed rafters.

CEE e

Figure 44: Fagade of Old Gas Station (photographer
facing southwest)

There are two exterior doors located at the nosthea
elevation of the building that are single wood door
comprised of three horizontal molded wood panelsvba
single pane of glass in the upper section. Windaxessix-
over-six double hung wood sash and frames witihgasof
flat boards at the jambs and head.

_— Figure 45 East Side of Old Gas Station
The building has a large pull-through bay covergdab (photographer facing west)

canopy that is part of the building’s main roof and
supported by three square columns that are cladwoiod
shingles. The site is flat and consists of concpateement
and gravel in the front and on the sides. A wooakezh is

to the rear. A concrete sidewalk and granite cumd a
located at the front of the site adjacent to tralveay.

Currently in use for commercial retail purposes thas
Station is an excellent example of an early20thuwgmgas
station with its low-pitched hipped roof and incorated
canopy, along with overhanging eaves, and three-ba
central block.

Figure 46: Old Gas Station as the Braselton
Service Station
(image from W.H. Braselton)
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Scott Building (#52 on map)

The Scott Building, constructed ca. 1920, is a stoey
rectangular-shaped commercial building sited eastest
and oriented east toward SR 53. Representative nof g&#
early20th century front-gable commercial building;
constructed with Craftsman-style elements, thedingl is
of wood frame construction and the exterior watls elad
with  wood drop siding. There are wood brackets
comprised of 2" x 4” boards at the corners of thsteand
west elevations. The building foundation considt®nck
masonry piers. The front gable roof is clad withnsting
seam metal roofing and the wide overhanging eageaha
simple wood board cornice and exposed rafters. el hes

two brick chimneys located at the interior slopéh& roof. Figure 47: Scott Building
(photographer facing northwest)

The building has two front doors, each a singlerdeith
three horizontal molded wood panels below a ningepa
glazed upper section and wood screen door. Windoe's
single and paired double hung wood windows withxa s
over-six pane sash. The doors and windows havelsimp
casings at the jambs and head, consisting of 1" Kad
boards. There are no shutters on the windows.

The building has a projecting front gable porchttisa
supported by two tapered wood posts, supportedjbsire
piers of fieldstone with stone caps. The porch éation is
comprised of a fieldstone foundation wall at theutbo
elevation of the porch. The porch floor is madepotired

concrete painted grey. Figure 48: Fagade of Scott Building
(photographer facing west)

The site slopes down from north to south and ctsif
gravel and grass at the east (front) and nortre)sad the
building. A fieldstone foundation wall is located the
south side of the site, marking the transition led grade
change from north to south. A concrete sidewalk ang
granite curb are located at the front of the sd@@ent to
the roadway.

I

The Scott Building was the second post office iadgfton
after the first post office was located in the Bt
Brothers Store. This building has also served ag
commercial retail space throughout its history. r€ntly

used as offices, the Scott Building is architedtyra

significant as an excellent example of an earlyh2@ntury Figure 49: Scott Building
commercial building constructed with elements oé th as Braselton's Second Post Office
Craftsmen style of architecture. (image from W.H. Braseiton)
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Auto Garage (#55 on map)

The ca. 1920 Braselton Auto Garage is a one-story
rectangular-shaped commercial building sited naotth
south and oriented north toward SR 124.

Representative of an early20th century commercigl /=
building used as an automobile garage, the buildsngf
wood frame construction and the exterior walls ele
with galvanized sheet metal. The front gable r@otlad
with standing seam metal roofing painted red ansl &a
wide overhanging eave with exposed rafters.

The main doorway of the building is a single lavgeoden
door and covered with the same sheet metal asxteea
wall siding. A simple 1" x 4” flat wood board servas the
casing at the jamb and head and the head cascapsed
with 1" x 2” flat hood trim along its horizontalngth. The
door is attached to the casing by four metal stiages Figure 50: Fagade of Auto Garage (photographer
and has no other visible exterior hardware. facing southeast)

There are four windows in the building, with twacéted
on each of the east and west elevations. Thessxaoxer-
six double hung wood sash and frames with casifdato
boards at the jambs and head. There are no shaottese
windows. The windows are in deteriorated conditivith
many of the sash and panes broken and missing.

The site slopes down from north to south away fithe 3
roadway. The garage is located in a wooded areaisand
currently overgrown with vegetation.

The ca. 1920 Auto Garage is a good example of dy ea
20th century automobile garage with its one-stagight,
front gable roof, wood frame construction, and tlagye
bay openings.

Figure 51: East Side of Auto Garage (photographer
facing west)
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Braselton Tire Company (#51 on map)

The Braselton Tire Company, constructed in 1935,
located on the south side of SR 53 between FraBtest [
and SR 124 and oriented toward the southeast facifi§
SR 53. &

The Tire Company is representative of a simplg
commercial building type associated with automot®leair
in the early to mid-twentieth century.

The building is constructed of wood frame on a stwy
rectangular plan with a front gable roof and lasyagle-
bay garage door opening at the facade.

Figure 52: Fagade of Braselton Tire Company
(photographer facing west)
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Figure 53: Floor Plan of Braselton Tire Company — Fagade/Front Facing to the Right
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The foundation is comprised of piers made from &ewa
of building materials. Several piers are constricttbrick
and supported by natural stone bases. Other grersiade
of poured concrete and supported by natural stowke
brick bases. One pier is a half-round split log ratural
stone base.

There are three exterior doorways in the buildingluding
a single doorway and roll-type garage door on thst €
elevation (fagade) and a double door on the westagbn
(rear).

L . . . Figure 54:
The bU||d|ng contains 22 W|nd0WS, with two on tI‘E‘SE Foundation Piers of Braselton Tire Company
elevation (facade), four on the west elevation rffeand (photographer facing east)

eight each on the north and south elevations. Aldows
except for the two on the east elevation are SBr-@ix
double hung wood sash windows with true dividedhtkg
These windows have 2” x 4” wood sills and 1” x 4bed
casing at the jambs and head.

The roof is a front gable with wood frame structufesw\
consisting of wood rafters in a variety of sizesluding | &
1" x 47, 1" x 67, 1” x 10”7, and 1” x 12”. The frammg is
braced by 2” x 4” vertical and diagonal supportise Joists
are 2” x 6” wood members and overlap approxima2eigt
the center of the building’s width. The roof is c&lavith \
corrugated metal roofing. The eave has a modergt
overhang, and is formed by a simple wood fasciadoa
The roof rafters are exposed at the eaves.

Figure 55: North Side of Braselton Tire Company
(photographer facing south)

Located at the center of commercial activity, the
Tire Company served historically as a retail cerftar
automobile-related goods and services, including

W.F. Clark’s Garage.

Although the Braselton Tire Company is a good exarop
an early20th century auto garage, the buildinglased to
be demolished as part of the upcoming intersect
improvement project for State Routes 53 and 124.

Figure 56: Braselton Tire Company as
W.F. Clark’'s Garage
(image from W.H. Braselton)

Braselton National Register Historic District
HABS Popular Documentation Report

Page 28



1957 Telephone Exchange Building (#39 on map)
Constructed ca. 1920, the 1957 Telephone Excharage w
most likely constructed as a single-family residenBy
1927, this building became the headquarters ofdb@ss
new telephone system. The one-story wood framelibgil
has an L-shaped plan with gable roof, overhanganes
and exposed rafters.

The foundation walls on the west and north elevatiare
one to two courses of field stone at grade with tavthree
courses of brick laid atop. The concrete porch dation
wall at the north elevation and the foundation vedlithe
west elevation are cracked and displaced alongribwtar

joints. There are several holes in the foundatioall w A
concrete blocks at select locations. Several of the
foundation vents have torn and missing screens.

Figure 57: 1957 Telephone Exchange
(photographer facing east)
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Figure 58: Floor Plan of the 1957 Telephone Exchange — Fagade/Front Facing to the Left
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The wall cladding is wood with corner board trinherfe is
only one exterior doorway into the main floor ofeth
building, located at the facade and accessed byfroms
porch. This historic front door is a single wooddavith
three horizontal molded panels below a three-light
horizontally-oriented glazed upper section and wasd
casing at the jambs and head. Windows are six-sixer-
double hung wood sash with true divided lights. All
windows have wood sills and casing at the jambsheadi.

The gable ell roof has wood frame construction vistio
layers of existing roofing, including a top layerf o
galvanized metal painted red atop asphalt shingléstop Figure 59: Front Oblique View of Telephone
plywood decking. The overhanging eave has exposed Exchange (photographer facing north)
rafters. A brick masonry chimney is visible fronetéttic,
but not on the exterior above the roofline or oa ithterior
below the ceiling.

The house has a two-bay front porch at the prinestyy
with a shed roof clad with the galvanized metalfirapand
supported by wood posts. The porch flooring is pdur
concrete atop concrete block side walls.

The building is sited facing west and the fronbrented
toward SR 53. The site has a steep slope down 8Brb3
on the west and Wall Street to the north before ematthg
into a slight slope under the house. Site vegetatansists . _ o

of grass and some foundation plantings at the facad Figure 60: Rear%ggﬂ:ﬁsgew of Telephone
wooded area is located to the south/southeast ef th (photographer facing southwest)
building.

The 1957 Telephone Exchange Building represents the
early-twentieth century modest residential dweHlinm
Braselton and the evolution of technological adeanent

as the home of the Braselton Telephone System iegin

in the mid-1920s. This building is also significant
architecturally as a good example of the gabléeilding

type constructed with Craftsman-style elements.

The building will be relocated as part of the upeam
intersection improvement project for the State Reub3
and 124. Though the building is to be moved to lagot

location within the historic district and used fowntinued Figure 61:
commercial purposes, it's physical and visual ctizrawill Historic View of Telephone Exchange Building
be changed. (image from Treasured Memories)
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Agricultural and Industrial Resources

The historic district is significant in agriculturand
industry for its excellent collection of agriculélir /
industrial buildings, including the Braselton Rodi Mill,
Cotton Gin, and Cotton Seed Storage Building.

These resources, constructed between ca. 190098 1
are located throughout the district and are prilpari
associated with the production of cotton during t
early20th century.

Cotton was the primary cash crop in the Braseltea and
the increase in production during the latel9th aady
20th centuries stimulated the growth of Braselton.

Figure 62:
Green Braselton with Cotton Loaded for the Market
(image from W.H. Braselton)

Although not a county seat or the largest commuinitthe
county, Braselton served as a commercial and indulst
center for portions of three counties, includingsteen
Jackson, northwestern Barrow, and southeastern Hall

Its regional prominence was due in part to its tiocealong
the railroad and to the aggressive marketing and *
salesmanship of the Braselton brothers.

From the 1890s through the mid-20th century, Btasel
served as a processing, market and shipping point §
agricultural products, particularly cotton and flou

During the historic period, the Gainesville Midland
Railroad (a section of the Central of Georgia Raitt) was
located along SR 53 with a spur rail located aldviall

Figure 63:

k : Locomotive for the Gainesville Midland Railroad
Street leading from SR 53 to the cotton-relateddings. (image from W.H. Braselton)

The railroad spur line, cotton press and warehouse

buildings are no longer extant.
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Historically, the town also had residential homathvassociated agricultural fields and outbuildings
both within and outside its city limits. Intact tusic examples of terraced agricultural fields and
agricultural outbuildings remain within the distradong State Route 124 East (#57 on map) and thehin

the John Braselton House.

Figure 64: Former Terraced Agricultural Fields Located on the North Side of State Route 124 East
(photographer facing north and northeast)
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Rolling Mill (#50 on map)

To complement the cultivation of cotton in Braseltthe
Braselton family constructed the Braselton RollMdl in

ca. 1900. The Rolling Mill is a two and one-halbrst
rectangular-shaped commercial building with one tavo-
bay two-story additions at its sides. A one-stonyeé-
guarter shed-roof addition is located at the reartf) of
the building. The mill is sited east to west andemed
south toward Francis Street.

The building is of wood frame construction and éxéerior
walls are clad with unpainted wood weatherboardhwit
corner boards of flat wood. The foundation conssts
square timber and triangular cement piers. Therakiont
gable roof is clad with standing seam metal roqfexg are
the shed roof side sections. The roof has a wide
overhanging eave with a simple fascia board formihmegy
eaves. The gable ends have a raking cornice cosnpoisa

flat wood board.

Figure 65: Historic Photo of Rolling Mill
(image from Treasured Memories)

The mill has three exterior doors on the southatien that

are comprised of vertically-oriented wood. The dobave
simple casings of flat wood at the jambs and head.
Windows are six-over-six double hung wood sash and
frame with wood sills and simple wood casings & th
jambs and head. Several windows have been in-filld
weatherboard and many have broken and missingasabh
panes. The side addition rooflines bisect the stciary
windows of the original building.

Figure 66: Fagade of Rolling Mill
(photographer facing north)

The site is moderately sloped from the front (spthrear
(north) away from Francis Street and consists @frass
yard around the mill with a wooded area to the (aarth).
There is a one-story, rectangular-shaped outbgjldin
located to the west of the mill. This building i®ed frame
with vertically-oriented sheet metal siding and@nf gable
roof with metal roofing.

The mill is significant as an example of an earBth2
century rolling mill with its two and one-half sjoheight,
side-gable metal roof, weatherboard exterior sidiagd
one-bay side additions.

Figure 67: Front Oblique View of Rolling Mill
(photographer facing northeast)
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Cotton Gin (#36 on map)

The Cotton Gin was constructed by the Braseltornilyara.

1900 in order to process the cotton being growhénarea
by separating the cotton fibers from the seeds.Gineis a
two-story rectangular-shaped industrial buildintedieast
to west and oriented north toward Wall Street.

The building is of wood frame construction and éxéerior
walls are clad with vertically-oriented corrugatstieet
metal. The side gable roof is clad with sheet mesahted
red and has a modest eave overhang along the emgtihl.
There are three circular metal smokestacks locatedg

the ridge of the roof. Figure 68: Historic Photo of Cotton Gin
(image from W.H. Braselton)

The gin has sliding wood doors at the north elevati_
(facade). These doors are covered with sheet nagidl
slide on a track located above the doors. Windoves &
fixed, awning -type metal windows with four- six canf
eight-pane horizontal light configurations. Thenee ano
shutters on the windows.

The gin has a full-length side porch on its norgwvation
that serves as a covered work space. This porch sasd
roof clad with red corrugated sheet metal thatujgpsrted
by steel posts. There are two projecting gablecsnces at |
the second story along the north elevation thatreset into
the first-story porch structure. There is also avetced
wagon entry or pull-through at the east elevatibthe gin Figure 69: Oblique View of Cotton Gin
that consists of a projecting sloped corrugatedahnebf. (photographer facing southwest)

The site slopes down from north to south away fitiadl
Street. The site consists of grass with a more elgnsf. .
wooded area behind the gin to the south and edwt. Ew ) ; ¢
railroad spur that once existed along Wall Streealel to
the gin has since been removed. There are no ext
outbuildings associated with the jail.

The Cotton Gin is significant as an example of anye
20th century cotton gin with its two-story heigsige-gable
metal roof, metal exterior siding, covered wagotrerand
wrap-around porch.

Figure 70: Cotton Gin
(photographer facing south)
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Cotton Seed Storage Building (#35 on map)

In addition to the Rolling Mill and Cotton Gin, the
Braselton family constructed a series of storagklings in
the early 1900s to store agricultural products sufgblies.
One of these buildings was the Cotton Seed Storg
Building. This structure is located at the end cdlVbtreet
in an area located between SR 124, Wall Street, IEde®
Drive, and Lakeshore Drive.

The structure is constructed of wood frame on sedhbne- |
story rectangular plan with a side gable roof amar fpair
of double wood batten doors.

Figure 71: Cotton Seed Storage Building
(photographer facing north)
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Figure 72: Floor Plan of Cotton Seed Storage Building
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The raised foundation is comprised of timber anitkbr
masonry piers that support 2” x 8” wood beams tiat

east to west along the length of the building. Tihgber

piers are 8" x 12” timbers with 2” x 6” diagonal wo

bracing. Many of the timber piers rest on flat k&t
natural stones, while others extend below grade.

The historic floor framing consists of 2” x 6” flogists set
on 17" centers that run north to south the widthtlodé
building. The joists are reinforced with 1” x 4”adjonal
bracing and rest on the 2” x 8” wood beams.

The historic exterior walls are 6 34" thick and tweod Figure 73: Timber Pier on Stone Footings
framing consists of 2” x 6” studs set on 18%" centeith (photographer facing north)

1” x 6” diagonal sheathing. The historic wall clauyl is
vertically-oriented sheet metal. The exterior wadise
further braced by steel tie rods that extend fromtls and
north wall studs to central studs on the east agst walls.

The side gable roof is of wood frame constructiotin\&” x

4" rafters and 2” x 6” wood joists on 18” centef$e roof
decking is 1” x 6” boards spaced approximately "8t

apart and roof sheathing is plywood. The roofing
asbestos shingles. The eave overhangs approxinitaty
the gable ends of the building.

A wood frame loading dock and awning are locatechal Figure 74: Vertical Sheet Metal Wall Cladding
the south elevation of the building. The dock amahiag (photographer facing southeast)
measure 42’-11” in length. The flooring of the logaydock
is 7%2" boards.

Though the Cotton Seed Storage Building is sigaificas
an example of an early20th century agriculturalekause
with its two-story height, side-gable roof, and en/'wood
frame construction, it is slated to be demolishegart of
the upcoming intersection improvements for StateitBe®
53 and 124.

Figure 75:
Wood Loading Dock and Awning
(photographer facing northeast)
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Community Landmark Resources

The historic district is significant in communitylapning
and development for the direct relationship betwédsn |
Braselton family and the development of the towheT [
Braselton area was settled by William Harrison Bltas

and his wife Susan Frances Hosch in 1876. Thereélffte
Braselton family was responsible for the constorctof

several of the residences that housed members eof
Braselton family and their employees. The familysvedso
responsible for the construction of the commercat:

Braselton Rolling Mill, Cotton Gin, and Cotton Seed

Storage Building. The Braseltons also created #mily Figure 76: Historic Photo of Braselton High School
cemetery and financed the construction for the &tas (image from Passing)

High School and Gymnasium.

AT o AL

The site of the former high school building is emtly used as the Braselton Heritage and
Visitors Center. The OId Jail and the Braselton €mmy are the last remaining community
landmark resources in the district.

High School Site and Home Economics Building (#2856 #48 on map)

Constructed in the early 1920s, the high school lates demolished, leaving only the historic
concrete steps from the street to the school aladvecurb, marking the former location of the
school.

Figure 77: Site of Former Braselton High School (photographer facing southwest)
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Built in the late 1920s, the Visitors Center wasedis
historically as the Home Economics Department for t
high school, and it later served as the Braseltdmaky.
Despite this change in use, the gymnasium?? serves
good representative example of the type of schoidling
used in early20th century Braselton, and displayshs
character-defining features as a front-gable reowadod-
frame construction, overhanging eaves with expose
rafters, six-over-six double-hung windows, projegt

gable-roof front porch, and wood shingle siding.

Figure 78: Braselton Visitors Center
The site of the school has not been developed hed t Former Home Economics Department
spatial relationship between the site of the sclzoml the (photographer facing northeast)
former Home Economics Building is still clearly
discernible. The significant landscape featureth@fschool
site help to retain the spatial relationship betwée site of
the school and the Home Economics Building.

Figure 79:
Site of Former Braselton High School at Left and Braselton Visitors Center/Former Home Economics Department in Right Background
(photographer facing north)
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Old Jail/Pokey (#37 on map)

The ca. 1920 Old Jail/Pokey is a one-story, one-ba
rectangular-shaped building located adjacent toGb&on
Gin and oriented north toward Wall Street.

The building is of wood frame construction and suped
by stacked stone piers. All but the rear (south) ara clad
with horizontal sheets of corrugated metal desighed
resemble brick siding. The rear wall is clad withrtically-
oriented sheet metal.

The front gable roof is wood frame with rafters miﬂg Figure 80: Front Oblique View of OId Jail
east to west along the width of the building. Thefing is (photographer facing east)
sheet metal painted red. The roof has a wide owgihg

eave with exposed rafters.

The jail has one door, which is a single wood dumrered
with sheet metal. The door is attached to the fravth
two metal strap hinges and is secured with a langéal
hasp and padlock. There are no windows or shutte
associated with the jail.

The site slopes down from north to south away fial
Street. The site consists of grass with a more algns
wooded area behind the jail to the south and east. .

The Old Jail/Pokey is significant as a communitydiaark

building that served a public safety function dgrithe Figure 81: Rear Oblique View of Old Jail
historic period of the district. It is representatiof an (photographer facing northeast)
early20th century rural jail in northeast Georgia.

Figure 82: Facade of Old Jail Figure 83: Close up of Old Jail
(photographer facing northeast) (photographer facing south)
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Braselton Cemetery (#1 on map)
The Braselton family cemetery is located in the fas
northwest corner of the  historic district '
Jesse Cronic Road.

The cemetery was founded by the Braselton famil¥989
and at the entrance are two decorative stone nsar
featuring square bases supporting large rubbledfag
cylindrical spheres.

A similar marker, smooth in finish, is located néae center [§
of the cemetery with the inscription “BRASELTON 102

The cemetery features large mature hardwood trees
foundation shrubs, curvilinear roads, and decogagtone
headstones in various sizes.

" Figure 84: Entrance to Braselton Cemetery
(photographer facing west)

Figure 85: Gravel Road in Braselton Cemetery
(photographer facing west)
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Figure 87: William H. and Susan F. Braselton Grave
Marker in Braselton Cemetery

(image from New Georgia Encyclopedia) Figure 86: Braselton Cemetery
(photographer facing southwest)
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Residential Resources

The historic residential resources are located cultre
roads radiating from the center of town. The rasigs
date from 1887 to the late 1950s and vary from wood
framed vernacular buildings to high-style buildinggth ey
formally landscaped yards. The significant buildiypes Aléil:;r'gi:

represented within the district include centralMaal, WH.BRASELTON g

gable ell cottage, saddlebag, Georgian cottageciQaene ; - PR

cottage, and Georgian House. The architecturalestyl : B ]
represented within the district include Neocladsica [ e 18
Revival, Colonial Revival, English Vernacular Readiv
Craftsman, and Folk Victorian. These residentigbteces
share common site features, including equal setbackl
informally landscaped yards with mature trees, @ation

plantings, and grass lawns.

Figure 88: Stone Marker at John

The three significant historic houses associateith wie Braselton House

Braselton family, include the John O. Braselton s&u
Green Braselton House, and W.H. Braselton Houskaen
the largest and grandest houses remaining in gteali

John Braselton House and Agricultural Outbuildings

(#s 10,11, 12,13, 14, and 15 on map)

The John Braselton House is located at 5157 SRb#e
northwest corner of the SR 53 and SR 124 intemecti
Constructed in 1900, the 4,754 square foot resalent
dwelling is sited east to west on a 3.08 acre parfcknd.
The two-story house was constructed in a Georgianse
plan in the Colonial Revival style. The house iswafod
frame construction and the exterior walls are clth Figure 89: John Braselton House
wood clapboard. A two-story ell was added at trar xf (image from Treasured Memories)
the house during the historic period.

The truncated hipped roof is clad with asphalt gleis. A
single-gable roof dormer is located on the on tbatls
elevation and a wood balustrade is located arouned t
perimeter of the roof. The enclosed eaves haveghtsli
overhang and the wood cornice features a dentiiseou

There are three brick chimneys associated withhthese.
Two are located on the interior roof slope of tlsi$e and
the third is located at the roof's ridge. The togven
courses of each chimney are corbelled at the lip.

Figure 90: John Braselton House
(photographer facing southwest)
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The house has one- and two-story wrap-around psrcie
with a machine-turned wood balustrade. The pordres _,
supported by slender wood columns with lonic
The porch flooring is tongue and groove wood. Wingo
are one-over-one double hung wood sash and frahies.
windows have flat wood casing at the jambs and seatth
a projecting window hood at the head. The windowsot
have shutters.

The front and side doorways are single doors caagrof
a single horizontal molded wood panel below a laiggle

glazed pane. Both doors are flanked by six-ligimiiddots .
with dentil course and seven-pane diamond-shaped Figure 91: John Braselton House
sidelights over a single vertical molded wood panel (photographer facing southwest)

The John Braselton House is architecturally sigaiit as
an excellent representative example of the Geollgmuse
building type and Colonial Revival style, a styleat was
popular in Georgia for a long period from the 1890s
through the 1940s and beyond. ”

interior chimneys, full-width one- and two-story apr
around porches supported by columns with lonic teégi
one-over-one double hung windows and entrancesrfegt
slender columns, fanlights and sidelights.

Figure 92: Door and Entry Surround at
John Braselton House
(photographer facing southwest)

A historic residential and agricultural landscaps i
associated with the Braselton House. The house and
grounds are representative of the “landscape ofkivor

historic residential landscape. This type of laagec [
typically includes a farmhouse, outbuildings, outido
activity areas, well, small “kitchen garden” inidesor rear

yards, agricultural fields and woodlots, and somef a

small grove of fruit or nut trees, all typicallyjnked by

networks of paths, fences, and functional sighedinThe

landscape of work occurs primarily on farms of siles

dating from the 18th century to the present.

Character-defining features of this landscape fprEsent
at the John Braselton House include concrete andest
retaining walls defining the yards, stone piers kimay the
main drive, large hardwood trees, and a grass hatim
foundation plantings located near the house.

Figure 93: John Braselton House and Outbuildings
(photographer facing southeast)
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Associated with the Braselton House are numerqo
agricultural outbuildings, located to the west bé tmain |
house. These buildings include one large transviease, ’
one deteriorated large transverse barn, a smokehog
tenant house, sheds, and a historic bell suppobted
concrete columns located near the outbuildings. ‘

Agricultural fields are located to the west of thaldings
and there is a system of roads and walks connedthiag
main house to the outbuildings and fields.

A barn located southwest of the John Braselton Elars

State Route 124 West has collapsed since the Nation Figure 94: Bam behind John Braselton House
Register District nomination was completed in 2001. (photographer facing northwest)

Figure 95: Figure 96:
Outbuildings behind John Braselton House Outbuildings behind John Braselton House
(photographer facing northwest) (photographer facing south)

Figure 97: Collapsed Barn Figure 98:
Southwest of John Braselton House Outbuildings behind John Braselton House
(photographer facing northwest) (photographer facing south)
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Green Braselton House (#16 on map)
The Green Braselton House was constructed ca. 40d 85
is located to the north of the John Braselton HausSR [$4°
53. The two-story Georgian House building type \wast
in the Colonial Revival style of architecture.

The house features a hipped roof, interior chimnegh
decorative patterned brickwork, slightly front-grciing
second story bay, single and paired nine-over-dmgble
hung windows, one-story wrap-around porch with devijses
entablature supported by single and paired cldss
columns, and a trabeated main entrance.

: 4 e

Figure 99: Green Braselton House
(image from Treasured Memories)

The landscaping includes large mature hardwoods,tres
grass lawn with foundation plantings, and a cincula
driveway. This house has received a large addaiothe
rear of the house and is used today as a bed &fastaand
special events facility.

The Green Braselton House was the home of Greegy, Ma
Duncan, Brassie, and Leta Braselton. Today, thesdasi
known as the Braselton Stover House and is used as
special events facility. The house is an exceke@ample of
the two-story Georgian House type built in the @adb
Revival style, with character-defining features rsuas
hipped roof, interior chimneys with decorative patted
brickwork, projecting second-story front bay, daulbiung
wood windows, one-story wrap-around porch with gair

classical columns, and trabeated main entrance.

Figure 100: Green Braselton Family
(image from Portraits of a Southern Place)

|

Figure 101: Figure 102:
Facade of Green Braselton House Outbuildings Adjacent to Green Braselton House
(photographer facing west) (photoarapher facina north)
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W.H. Braselton House (#42 on map)
The third Braselton residence, the W.H. Braseltaus¢, prms
was constructed in 1913 to the south of the finst houses *

along SR 53. The two-story Georgian House buildijme [
was built in the Neoclassical Revival style. Theus® pegg
features a flat roof, modillions, dominant full-gbt full [
portico with fluted classical columns, second-stoenter- [EgEss
bay balcony, one-story side porches supported biedl §
classical columns, one-over-one double hung windawd
trabeated main entrance. Much of the historic leapisg [§&
associated with the house has been lost to a galdinThe

remaining historic elements include a grass lawid 3

mature hardwood trees. This house is currently asetthe

Braselton City Hall. Figure 103: W.H. Braselton House
(image from Treasured Memories)

The W.H. Braselton House was the home of HenryjeSad
Belle, Royce, Grace Pallie, Lewis, and Bill Braselt The
house serves today as Braselton’'s City Hall. Thesbas
an excellent example of the two-story Georgian Fduslt
in the Neoclassical Revival style. This style, plapun
Georgia from the 1890s through the 1930s, wasqfatie
revival of interest in classically inspired arclitgre as well
as a reaction to earlier Victoria styles. Charad&fming
features of the W. H. Braselton House include aw-I
pitched roof with balustrade, classical cornice hwit
modillions, dominant full-height front portico wittlassical
columns and second-story center bay balcony, rg-st
side porches supported by classical columns, oee-ave

double hung windows, and trabeated main entrance. Figure 104: W.H. Braselton Family
(image from Portraits of a Southern Place)

Figure 105: Figure 106:
W.H. Braselton House/Braselton Town Hall W.H. Braselton House/Braselton Town Hall
(photographer facing southwest) (photographer facing northeast)
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Vernacular Dwellings

The historic district is also comprised of sevegalod
examples of vernacular building types, with varyi
degrees of stylistic ornament.

The majority of residential dwellings in the distrare one-
story wood frame and brick masonry dwellings. The
buildings are similar in their period of constroctj [
construction techniques, house type, and styli
ornamentation. They were constructed during thé/-¢ar
mid period of the century using wood frame congtouc
techniques, and they were built as Bungalow hoygest |

with elements of the Craftsman style.

_ Figure 107: Second Store Converted to Central Hall
They also exemplify a common landscape type knosn a Residence (image from Treasured Memories)

the ornamental yard, which was found in Braseltaring
the historic period Generally self-contained antlaged
along a high point of the ground, the charactemaef
features of the ornamental yard typically includead
elevated site, grass yard, and foundation plantings

House in Woods (#24 on map)

One of the oldest buildings remaining in the histdistrict
was built ca. 1887. It is located in an overgrownhdn the
northeast corner of SR 53 and SR 124 behind thstiegi
Post Office. Originally built as a one-room stone John
Braselton, the building was later enlarged to funrcis a
central hall residential dwelling.

) ) Figure 108: House/Second Store
A common house type in Georgia, the Central Hadsw in Woods behind Post Office

constructed throughout the state, during the huhgears (photographer facing southwest)

from 1830 to 1930. Many Central Hall residencesewer
constructed during the periods of 1840 to 1860X84D to
1890. The Central Hall is typified by the centralllh
interior floor plan with gable roof and exterior den
chimneys. The character-defining features of thosiSe
include the interior central hallway, side-gablestah roof,
weatherboard exterior cladding, and gable-end, kbric
chimney.

Figure 109: Example of a Central Hall Floor Plan
(image from House Types in Georgia)
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Saddlebag at 73 Jesse Cronic Road (#3 on map)
Another good example of a vernacular residentiat|timg
is located at 73 Jesse Cronic Road (formerly kn@sn
Liberty Church Road) to the north of its intersentwith
SR 124.

This ca. 1900 house is an example of the Saddlelbage
type. The Saddlebag is one of the most distinctine
easily recognizable house types in Georgia, andahase-
story, one- room-deep floor plan, with a centrainoiey
flanked by two rooms and gabled roof. Saddlebagse we
generally constructed during three time period&@&orgia:
the earliest Saddlebag houses were constructediral r
areas during the 1830s and 1840s; next were Sadfleb
constructed in the late19th century on the outlyimgges
of Georgia towns; and finally during the period Ndfll
Village Construction, from 1910 to 1930.

The character-defining features of this Saddlelvedude
its side-gable metal roof, weatherboard exteriadding,
full-width shed porch, centrally located chimnepdawo-
bay front facade with each bay featuring a mainrdow
window.

Figure 110:
Example of a Saddlebag Floor Plan
(image from House Types in Georgia)

Figure 111: Fagade of Saddlebag
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Figure 112:

(photographer facing southwest) Oblique View of Saddlebag at 73 Jesse Cronic Road

(photographer facing northwest)
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9608 SR 124 (#31 on map)

The house located at 9608 SR 124 (north side oIBR is
an excellent example of a Georgian Cottage houpe 1
located in its historic landscaped setting.

The Georgian Cottage is the most long-lived hoype tn p#
Georgia, and consists of a central hallway with teoms g
on either side, and typically has a hipped or ghltsof

built throughout Georgia’s history well into the tBO
century, the greatest concentration is from thesy#850 to »'
1890.

Constructed ca. 1870, this house is one of thesblde Figure 113: Historic View of 9608 State Route 124
surviving buildings in Braselton. Its characteridefy
features include the side-gable roof, square-shdjoed ___
plan, and interior central hallway. The settingtloé house |2~
includes ornamental yard elements, such as the [k
concrete and stone wall with steps leading to theated
front yard, and grass yard with foundation plansing

Figure 114: Fagade of 9608 State Route 124
(photographer facing north)

Figure 115:
Example of a Georgia Cottage Floor Plan
(image from House Types in Georgia)

Figure 116:
Oblique View of 9608 State Route 124
(photographer facing northeast)
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Barnett House / 9684 SR 124 (#32 on map)
The ca. 1900 Barnett House is a 1,183 square fJ@
residential dwelling sited facing north toward SF41The
one-story house was constructed in an L-shaped [ilan
representative of the gabled ell or gabled wingskeotype
in Georgia. One of the most popular late19th cgnbause
types in the state, the gabled ell house type i©fTL-
shaped in plan and consists of a gable-front atemwkeof a
recessed wing that is parallel to the facade.

The house is of wood frame construction with erteri [EEs
walls clad in wood clapboard. The cross gable isaflad §
with asphalt shingles and the boxed eave overhdmgs
exterior walls. A simple flat board comprises tlaking
cornice in the gable ends. The house has two brick
chimneys: one is located at the center along thgeriine
of the front facing the gable section of the hoasd the
second is located at the exterior wall of the sig@dle
section of the house.

Figure 117: Fagade of Barnett House
(photographer facing south)

Windows are six-over-six double hung wood sash wvitle
divided lights. The single and paired windows haweod
frames, sills, and wood casings of flat boardshatjambs
and heads. There are no shutters on the windows. Th
doorways are comprised of single wood doors witle tw
small vertically-oriented lights in the top sectioh the
door. Other doors have three horizontal molded wog¢d
panels below three vertical glazed panes. All daysw
have wood and screen doors.

Figure 118: Example of a Gabled Ell Floor Plan
The house has two porches, with a full-width porch (Image from House Types in Georgia)
extending the length of the north and west elewatid his
porch has a shed roof clad with asphalt shingleth wi —
exposed rafters supported by wood columns. Thenseco |,
porch is enclosed at the east elevation. It habadlosv-
pitched gable roof clad with asphalt shingles asd i
supported on concrete block foundation walls.

The house is sited facing north and west on alsitehas a
slight downward slope north to south from SR 124e Site
consists of a grass yard with foundation plantirgsl

mature trees. A densely wooded area is locatedath b |
sides and at the rear of the house.

Figure 119: Oblique View of Barnett House
(photographer facing southeast)
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Residence at State Route 124 & Jesse Cronic RGaoin(#hap)
This ca. 1920 house is a 1,040 square foot resadent
dwelling sited east facing Jesse Cronic Road ori&8
acre parcel of land. The one-story house was agstsl in

a rectangular-shaped plan and is representative Sfle-
gable cottage or bungalow house type constructatd wi
elements of the Craftsmen style.

The Craftsman style, the most popular early 20thtwrg
style in Georgia, was a break with the popularvaiei of
historical styles. Craftsman style houses were tcocied
throughout Georgia in rural, small town, and urbattings
from the 1910s through the 1930s, and generallyded a
low-pitched gabled or hipped roof, wide overhangeagyes Figure 120: Photo of Residence from
with exposed rafters, decorative brackets or branmshes 2001 National Register Historic District nomination
with short square columns set on piers, and windais
multi-pane sashes over a single-pane sash.

The house is of wood frame construction and therext
walls are clad with wood clapboard. The side gabtd is
clad with asphalt shingles and has a wide overimgngave
with exposed rafters and wood brackets. A brick anag
chimney is located at the interior slope of thefrdhe
roofing is collapsed on the southern portion of gable
roof.

Windows are six-over-six double hung wood sash an
frames with casings of flat boards at the jambs laeald.
There are no shutters on the windows. A front ptae Figure 121: Residence with Overgrown Vegetation
gable porch extends over the main entry at thedacéhe (photographer facing north)

house has an irregular interior floor plan andriotewalls
and flooring are of pine wood.

The house is sited facing east on a site that slajevn
from west to east toward Jesse Cronic Road. Tle si
consists of grass and foundation plantings witheasdly
wooded area north of the house. The site is ovengreith
vegetation and only portions of the house are Msib

The residence is a good example of a side-gablgdion
with Craftsman-style elements; however, the hogséni
deteriorated condition and the roof has collapsesewveral
areas allowing water to enter the building.

Figure 122: Residence with Deteriorating Roof
(photographer facing northeast)
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Evans House / 9132 SR 124 (#26 on map)

The ca. 1926 Evans House is a 2,064 square fadergsl
dwelling sited facing south towards SR 124 on & @ére
parcel of land. The one-story house is an L-shagtesd and
is a good representative example of a front gabteyalow
with Craftsman-style elements situated within atadh
historic landscape design. The house is of woodhdra
construction. While the exterior walls were modtely
(and possibly still are) clad with wood clapbodittky are
currently covered with vinyl siding. The foundatias
square brick piers that have been in-filled withhaete
block.

Figure 123:
Example of a Front Gable Bungalow Floor Plan

The steeply-pitched hipped roof is clad with asphal (image from House Types in Georgia)

shingles. The boxed eave overhangs the exterids wat
has decorative wood braces at the eaves. Theréware
brick chimneys located at the interior slope of thef. A
front integral porch has been enclosed around thenm [
doorway. Single and paired windows are two-oves-tw |*
double hung wood sash and frames on the main poofio
the house.

Two outbuildings are associated with the house.,¥2
square foot front gable wood frame building is tedato
the northwest of the house. A 600 square foot fgatile
barn of wood construction is located to the westtha
house.

) Figure 124: Fagade of Evans House
The Evans House is a good example of a front-gable (photographer facing northeast)

bungalow with Craftsman-style elements. The charact
defining architectural features of this house ideluts low- TS

) . - N\/Z7
pitched front-gable roof, overhanging eaves, emclos N g\',
integral front porch, wood eave brackets, and wporth
supports on brick piers.

Located at the high point of its site, the hista#tting of
the Evans House is a good representative examplbeof
ornamental yard, exemplified by the stone wallstluod
walkway from SR 124 to the elevated front yard, lo
concrete wall outlining the yard, and foundatioarpings
and grass yard.

Figure 125:
Raised Site and Stone Stairs Leading to Evans House
(photographer facing northwest)
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Richardson House / 9698 SR 124 (#27 on map)
The ca. 1930 Richardson House is an 843 square fq
residential dwelling sited facing south toward SR.1The
one-story house was constructed in a rectangubgresh
plan and is representative of the front gable blovga
house type constructed with Craftsman elements.

The house is of wood frame construction with erteri §
walls clad with wood drop siding and flat wood ocern
boards. The foundation walls are concrete blocktpdi
green with foundation vents at the east and westagbns.
The front gable roof is clad with green asphalhghés and
the gable ends have a raking wood cornice withicern

returns. Figure 126: Fagade of Richardson House
(photographer facing northwest)

Windows are single and paired six-over-six doubled
wood sash and frames on the east and west elesafibe
three windows on the south elevation are singleaiced
two-over-two horizontal pane double hung wood sasth
frames. All windows have casings of flat boardstla
jambs and heads. There are two exterior doorwa
associated with the house. The front door is alsingod
door with modern screen doors. The rear door isgles
metal door with two horizontal glazed panes.

There are two porches on the house. A front priigct
gable porch is at the south elevation. This porsh i
supported by three decorative metal posts. The hporc

. . . Figure 127: Oblique View of Richardson House
foundation is concrete block and the floor is palure S (photo%rapherfacingwest)

concrete with decorative brick trim at the edgesthree-
quarter width rear porch is located at the norgvation.
This porch has a shed roof with green asphalt &snand
is currently in a state of disrepair. The porchbeing
temporarily supported by two 2" x 4” boards and th
flooring has been removed leaving only the brick
foundation. i

The house is sited facing south on a site thaeletively
flat. A 336 square foot historic outbuilding is &ed to the
rear of the house. This is a one-story rectangshaped
building of wood frame construction with drop sigin
exterior walls and front gable roof clad with tlaere green
asphalt shingles as the house.

Figure 128:
Outbuilding and Rear of Richardson House
(photographer facing southeast)
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Residence at 9819 State Route 124 (#34 on map)
This ca. 1930 house is a residential dwelling sitetth to
south and oriented north toward SR 124. The ongrstg
house was constructed in a rectangular-shaped [ilas.
representative of the Bungalow house type congtdusith
Craftsman elements during the early20th century.

The house is of wood frame construction and theret
walls are clad with wood clapboard. Flat wood corng
boards are located vertically at each exterior @onof the
house. The foundation is comprised of brick masqgeys
and the spacing between the piers has been id-fillith
concrete block.

Figure 129:
The steeply-pitched hipped roof is clad with asphal FrontOblique View of 9819 State Route 124
shingles. The roof has a wide overhanging eave with (Photographer facing southeast)
exposed rafters. A brick masonry chimney is locatledg |
the roof slope at the west elevation. The top tlu@eses
of brick are corbelled at the lip of the chimney.

The primary doorway has a non-historic single weath ,
two vertical molded wood panels between two othge
vertical molded panels below and two square glamates
above.

Windows are four-over-four double hung wood sasl a
sills. The door and windows have simple casingdlaif
boards at the jambs and head with a flat wood tamahe
heads. There are no shutters on the windows.

Figure 130:
o o _ Rear Oblique View of 9819 State Route 124
The house has a front porch that is inset withe rtrain (photographer facing northeast)

roof at the northwest corner of the house. Thelpooof is
supported by two square wood posts on square prak.
The porch flooring is flush wood boards and thdirogiis

west side of the house via three -step wood fraaiesst

The house is sited facing north on a site thataa$ight
downward slope from north to south. The site cassié
grass and foundation plantings with a densely wdatea
south of the house. The house has suffered aifice she
initial survey for this project. The fire has desd the
roof and a majority of the interior of the house.

Figure 131: 9819 State Route 124 after the fire
(photographer facing southeast)
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5293 SR 53 (#17 on map)

The historic residence at 5293 SR 53 (north of(Gineen
Braselton House) is the only historic brick resickemvithin
the district.

This one and one-half story house, constructedl840,
was constructed in the English Vernacular Revitgles
This style was common in the early-twentieth centur
Georgia’s suburban neighborhoods. Inspired by dtimes
architecture of medieval England, this style waseblaon
English country and vernacular houses. English &astar
Revival houses were constructed across Georgiarge |
city and small town settings, often with entire nlad
neighborhoods developed in the style.

Characteristics of this style include an asymmatrftoor Figure 132: Facade of 5293 State Route 53
plan and steeply pitched gabled roof with dominanit- (photographer facing west)
facing gable. While almost all examples of the estigave

masonry walls, most are masonry-veneer, a technidue

applying a thin layer of masonry to a separate wat
structure. Some examples have patterned brickweinke
others are stuccoed. A variety of materials areeroftf
employed, including brick walls, stone trim, woodlfh
timbering, and stuccoed gables. Windows are gdpdel
and narrow and set in groups. Door openings, pdatiy
the main entry, are emphasized by a round arch.

The character-defining features of this house ohelbrick
masonry walls, a steeply-pitched gabled roof witihnchant
front-facing gables, patterned brickwork, and stane¢he
front-facing gable marking the main entrance.

Figure 133: Oblique View of 5293 State Route 53
(photographer facing northwest)
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Residence at 9791 State Route 124 (#33 on map)
This residence is located at 9791 State Route 124/Davig,Stnebhe south side of
SR 124. Constructed ca. 1930, this residence is a one-sitoipdpwvith a rectangular-shaped plan.

Figure 134: Floor plan of 9791 State Route 124 — Fagade/Front Facing to the Left

The residence is constructed of wood frame with a hippedarabinset front porch. The foundation is
comprised of 8” x 12" brick masonry piers. The floor fragiconsists of 2” x 8” timber joists that are
15”, 16", and 17" on center. The joists rest atop 6”x 8heimber sills. The wood frame walls are 5
%" thick and are comprised of 2” x 4” studs on 16” centersefior walls are clad with ¥2” x 5 %2”
clapboard with a 4 34" reveal. The house has 1” x 4heoboards at each corner of the house with
1" x 2 ¥2” wood trim.

The residence has three exterior doorways and contaiesmmdows, with two on the north elevation
(facade), two on the west elevation, one on the seletration (rear), and four on the east elevation.
The windows are two-over-two and four-over-four double ghavood windows with wood sash
windows. The windows have 2” x 4” wood sills and 1” x 5” wlocasing at the jambs and head. All
windows are historic.
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The hipped roof is of wood frame construction wit
2" x 47 rafters and 2" x 6” wood timber joists o2 |
centers. Three layers of existing roofing are evidéhe
top layer is standing seam metal with plywood degki
The middle layer is asphalt shingles with 1” x @ida
1” x 8" wood decking. These two layers are laidpat
earlier wood shingle roofing. The overhanging eave
comprised of 1” x 2 ¥2” tongue and groove wood bearg
with rafter ends visible at eave.

There are three brick chimneys located on the iotter |

slope of the building. These chimneys have beeccetd —
and have metal flashing at their juncture withribef. The Figure 135:

northeast and southwest chimneys serve the fireplar ~ Front Oblique View of 9791 State Route 124
(photographer facing southeast)

four rooms of the house. A third chimney is in the
southeast corner of the house above the bathrod®. T
exterior portion of this chimney is visible abovhet
roofline, but it is not visible in the interior ahe house
below the ceiling.

The house has a front porch that is inset withe rtrain
roof at the northwest corner of the house. The Iporg
measures 16’-7 & 3/4” by 8-1 ¥%" and consists of
135 square feet. The portion of the roof over tbhecp is
supported by two 10" x 10" wood posts supported b
16” x 16” brick piers. The posts and piers are safea by A P L .
a 12” wood cap with quarter-round trim. The poreiiiog Figure 136: Side of 9791 State Route 124
consists of 1" x 2v%" beadboard. The porch flooring (photographer facing west)

consists of 1” x 5" and 1” x 7” flush boards. Thergh is
accessed from the west side of the house via Stege-
wood frame stairs.

YA

Although the residence is a contributing histoesaurce
in the existing Braselton NRHP District and represéhe [
early20th century bungalow house type with Craftsmefs
elements being constructed in Braselton at thag,tithe
house is slated to be demolished as part of theming
intersection improvements for State Routes 53 &4d 1

Figure 137:
Rear Oblique View of 9791 State Route 124
(photographer facing southwest)
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Other Contributing Historic Buildings in Historic District
In addition to the historic residential resourdd®re are another#
sixteen buildings that are considered to be caufnly to the [E o
historic significance of the Braselton Historic Dist. These [5&
buildings include:
e House at 159 Jesse Cronic Road (#2 on map)
House on State Route 124 (#4 on map)
House at 254 State Route 124 (#5 on map)
House at 34 Jesse Cronic Road (#7 on map)
Barn on State Route 124 (#21 on map)
House at 9866 State Route 124 (#22 on map)
House at 9836 State Route 124 (#23 on map)
House in Woods (#25 on map)
House at 9678 State Route 124 (#28 on map)
House at 9656 State Route 124 (#29 on map)
4955 State Route 53 (#43 on map)
4977 State Route 53 (#44 on map)
4997 State Route 53 (#45 on map)
Countryside Antiques/115 Harrison Street (#47 op)ma

Griz Graphics Signs/36 Frances Street (#49 on map)
Old Barber Shop (#54 on map)
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Figure 143: House in Woods Figure 144: 115 Harrison Street Figure 145: 36 Frances Street
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Non-Contributing Buildings in Historic District

There are ten non-historic/non-contributing buiginwithin the
boundaries of the revised Braselton Historic DastriThese
buildings were not present during the period ohiigance and
are therefore considered to be non-contributingyTdre not large
in scale and are primarily located along GeorgateéSRoute 53.
These buildings include:

. Braselton Library at 132 State Route 124 (#8 @p)n

. Collapsed barn behind John Braselton House (#9am)
. House at 5272 State Route 53 (#18 on map)

. Post Office at 5216 State Route 53 (#19 on map)

. Gwinnett Clinic at 5196 State Route 53 (#20 omp)na

. House at 9630 State Route 124 (#30 on map)

. Residence at 9819 State Route 124 (#34 on map)

. Alltel Building (#40 on map)

. Braselton Police Department (#41 on map)

. Northeast Georgia Bank at 5045 State Route 53
(#46 on map)

Figure 150: 9630 State Route 124

Figure 151: Alltel Building Figure 152: Braselton Police Dept. Figure 153: Northeast Georgia Bank
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Conclusion

From its founding in 1876 through its incorporation in 1916, Bi@seyrew into the agricultural and
commercial center for Jackson and surrounding countieagltine late 19th and early20th centuries.
The Braselton Historic District was listed in the iatl Register of Historic Places in 2001, with
boundaries encompassing the historic center of Braseldnincluding the remaining intact historic
resources associated with the town’'s development. Biteselton Historic District is currently
comprised of 48 contributing and 10 non- contributing resayreehich include the historic
commercial, agricultural, industrial, community landmaakd residential resources constructed from
the late19th to mid20th centuries.

A detailed review of the Braselton Historic Distries been conducted based on anticipated impacts
from the upcoming realignment of the intersection oféSRoutes 53 and 124. As a result of the route
selection and road design associated with the upcominigmeent of the intersection of State Route
53 and 124, three buildings will be demolished and one buildingatdd in order to accommodate the
new alignments for these roadways. The Braselton Campany, Cotton Seed Storage Building, and
the residence at 9791 State Route 124 will be demolishethark®57 Telephone Exchange Building
will be relocated to a new site in the historic degtri

In addition, several previously-contributing historidltungs and sites in the historic district no longer
exist. The revised historic district will consist of 4@ntributing historic buildings and 3 historic sites,

for a total of 43 contributing resources in the distii¢te updated Braselton Historic District, as it will

exist following the intersection realignment projectl vetain a majority of historic resources and thus
continue to convey the historic significance of thetratis in the areas of architecture, landscape
architecture, agriculture, industry, commerce, and commyyatanning and development at the local
and state levels of significance. The BraseltondtiistDistrict will continue to serve as an excellent
example of a small town founded on the agricultural gnpwadustrial production and commercial sale
of cotton in northeast Georgia during the late19th ang 2ath centuries.
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